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Virginia Electric and Power Company
ATTN: Mr. W. L. Stewart, Vice President

Nuclear Operations.

P. O. Box 26666
Richmond, VA 23261

Gentlemen:

SUBJECT: MATERIAL FALSE STATEMENT AND INOPERABLE REACTOR COOLANT SYSTEM VENTS:
'

EA 84-57 (INSPECTION REPORT NOS. 50-280/84-10,50-281/84-10,
50-338/84-06,AND50-339/84-06)

During the above-referenced inspections, the Nuclear Regulatory Comission (NRC)
determined that inaccurate information (false statements) had been given to the
NRC concerning the operability of the RCS vents at North Anna Unit 2 and concerning
the North Anna reactor trip breaker maintenance procedures. The NRC also
determined that the reactor coolant system (RCS) vents were not operable at both
the North Anna and Surry facilities. The false statements were made in letters
to the NRC, Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation (NRR), dated October 28, 1983'

and. November 4, 1983.

These violations were discussed in an Enforcement Conference held in the NRC
Region II Office on April 17, 1984 between Mr. James P. O'Reilly, Regional
Administrator, Mr. J. H. Ferguson, Executive Vice President / Chief Operating
Officer of VEPC0, and nembers of their staffs. The circumstances surrounding
the violations are discussed below.

The first material false statement involves the reactor head vent system. On
September 9, 1983, a clarification letter was issued by NRR to Virginia Electric
Power Company (VEPC0) stating that 10 CFR 50.44(c)(3)(fii) had superseded the
criteria of NUREG-0737, Item II.B.I. 10 CFR 50.44(c)(3)(iii) requires each light
water nuclear power reactor to have installed, by the end of the first scheduled
outage of sufficient length after July 1,1982, high point vents for the reactor
vessel head and other reactor coolant system high points for the removal of
noncondensible gases which would interfere with the function of these systems.
The high point vents must be capable of being operated. remotely from the control
room. For North Anna Unit 2, the system should have been operable following the
spring 1983 fifty-five day outage. For Surry Units 1 and 2, the system should
have been operable following the Unit I and Unit 2 refueling outages on June 30,
1983 and on February 8, 1983, respectively.

On' October 28, 1983, VEPC0 requested that NRC grant an exemption for North Anna
Units 1 and 2 from the operating procedures and personnel training requirements
of 10 CFR 50.44(c)(3)(iii). In that letter VEPC0 stated:

Units Nos. 1 and 2 have complied with the rule by having the RCS [ reactor
coolant system] vents installed and operational by the first outage of
sufficient duration beginning after July 1,1982. The RCS vents have been
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functionally tested but currently are electrically disconnected. In the
event of an emergency, the RCS vents could be energized and they could be
used with the guidance of the generic procedures.

During inspections conducted at the North Anna facility during March 6 through
April 5, 1984, the resident inspector discovered that at the time the October 28,
1983 statement was made, the manual isolation valves for the reactor head vent
system were closed. Since the manual isolation valves are located in the
containment, they are not normally accessible to personnel during periods when
the reactor is at power or during an accident which would require operation of
the vent system. As a result, the reactor head vent system could not have been
operated remotely from the control room as indicated in VEPCO's October 28, 1983
letter. Therefore, the statement that the reactor head vent system could have
been energized and used was false. The statement was material because it caused
the NRC staff to believe that the reactor head vent system could have been used
if an accident had occurred requiring its use.

The closed isolation valves on the reactor vessel head vent were identified at
Surry during inspection of NUREG-0737, Item II.B.1. The manual isolation valves
for the reactor vessel head vents were also closed at Surry during periods when
the plant conditions required them to be operable. However, no representations to
the NRC concerning the operability of the reactor head vent system at Surry have
been identified.

The second material false statement involves lubrication procedures for the
reactor trip breakers. The NRC issued Generic Letter 83-28 on July 9, 1983.
Among other things, the letter requested licensees to furnish information on
incorporation of vendor information for safety-related equipment. On November 4,
1983, VEPC0 made the following statement as part of its response to Generic
Letter 83-28. " Maintenance and testing procedures'for the Reactor Protection
System contain the latest vendor information received by the stations."

During the previously referred to inspections conducted at the North Anna facility
during March 6 through April 5,1984, the resident inspector discovered that at
the time the November 4, 1983 statement was made, information concerning Westing-

. house revised recommended lubrication procedures had not been incorporated into
the licensee's reactor trip breaker maintenance procedures. The information which
was contained in Westinghouse Technical Bulletin NSD-TB-83-02 had been received by
the licensee at the time of the March 6 to April 5,1983 inspection. Therefore the
statement that the maintenance procedures for the reactor protection system contained
the latest vendor information was false. The statement was material because had
the NRC known that the licensee had not incorporated the Westinghouse revised
recomendations, the NRC would have required that they be immediately incorporated.

The circumstances of the material false statement violations discussed at the
Enforcement Conference indicate that a breakdown in communications occurred as a
result of a failure to follow procedures. However, the material false statements
were not willful. In accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy in effect at the
time of the violation, 10 CFR Part 2, Appendix C, 47 FR 9987 (March 9, 1982), the
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violations have been categorized as a Severity Level III problem. A civil
penalty of $40,000 could be proposed for this problem. However, VEPC0 has had
an excellent history of reporting information to the NRC for many years and this
problem appears to be an isolated event. In addition, VEPC0 management recognized
the errors involved with the problem and promptly initiated corrective action.
The revised Enforcement Policy (49 FR 8583 March 8, 1984) allows mitigation on
the basis of prompt and extensive corrective actions and also for good prior per-
formance in an area of concern for a period of at least 2 years. Therefore,
after consultation with the Comission, I have detennined that total mitigation
of the civil penalty is appropriate. The NRC expects licensees to ensure that
information relevant to the regulatory process is promptly furnished. VEPC0
should ensure compliance with this requirement in the future. You also should be
aware that if a similar violation occurs any base civil penalty can be escalated
by as much as 100%.

The violation involving operability of the RCS vents resulted from failure to
effectively incorporate modifications in accordance with 10 CFR 50.44(c)(3)(iii).
As a result, neither facility had the capability to operate (remotely) the RCS
vents. The violation has been categorized at Severity Level III in accordance

in effect at the time of the violation,10 CFR
with the NRC Enforcement Policy (March 9,1982).Part 2, Appendix C, 47 FR 9987 The base value of a civil
penalty for a Severity Level III violation was $40,000 at the time of this
violation. To emphasize the necessity to comply with Comission regulations, I
have been authorized, after consultation with the Director, Office of Inspection
and Enforcement, to issue the enclosed Notice of Violation and Proposed
Imposition of Civil Penalty in the amount of Forty Thousand Dollars ($40,000) for
this violation as described in the enclosed Notice.

Two less significant violations and two deviations were also identified during
the March 6 through April 5, 1984 inspection. These involved VEPCO's failure to~
implement quality assurance requirements, failure to adequately control reactor
coolant cooldown rate, and to meet comitments made to the NRC. The deviations
involved VEPC0's failure to meet comitments made to the NRC. NRC expects
licensees to adhere to obligations and comitments, and although the failure to'

meet comitments for this inspection was determined to be a deviation, the NRC
considers this failure to be serious.

You are required to respond to the enclosed Notice and you should follow the
instructions specified therein when preparing your response. Your response
should specifically address the corrective actions planned with regard to
ensuring that submittals to the NRC are accurate and reviewed by personnel
knowledgeable of actual conditions. In your response, appropriate reference to
previous submittals is acceptable.

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of the NRC's " Rules of Practice," Part 2,
Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, a copy of this letter and the enclosure

~ will be placed in the NRC Public Document Room.
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The responses directed by this letter and accompanying Notice are not subject to
the clearance procedures of the Office of Management and Budget as required by
the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1980, PL 96-511.

Sincerely,

% (. l9 N
J es P. O'Reilly
Re ional Administrator

Enclosures:
1. Notice of Violation and Proposed

Imposition of Civil Penalty
2. Notice of Deviation - North Anna
3. Inspection Report Nos. 50-280/84-10,

50-281/84-10
4. Inspection Report Nos. 50-338/84-06,

50-339/84-06

cc w/encls:
J. H. Ferguson,-Chief Operating Officer
W. S.'Mistr Manager - Security
E. W. Harr_ ell, North Anna Station Manager
R. F. Saunders, Surry Station Manager
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